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Official Texas Historical Building Marker without post, for
attachment to brick
Comal County (Order #8760)
Location: 430 wW. Mills Street, New Braunfels
OLD NEW BRAUNFELS HIGH SCHOOL*
BUILT IN 1913 TO REPLACE THE OLD
NEW BRAUNFELS ACADEMY, THIS
BUILDING WAS DESIGNED BY SAN
ANTONIO ARCHITECTS C.V.SEUTTER AND
ALISTER SHAND,AND BUILT BY LOCAL
CONTRACTOR ADOLPH F .MOELLER,IT
SERVED AS AN EDUCATIONAL FACILITY
FOR OVER FIFTY YEARS REFLECTING
INFLUENCES OF THE PRAIRIE SCHOOL
STYLE, THE BUILDING FEATURES COR-
BELLED BRICK AND STONE DETAIL,A
BROAD ONE-STORY ENTRY PORCH, AND
SOME WINDOWS WITH FINE MUNTIN
DETAIL IN THE UPPER SASHES g * *
RECORDED TEXAS HISTORIC LANDMARK - 1986***
*3/8 inch lettering to contrast with text

**3/8 inch lettering
***1/4 inch lettering
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THE NEW BRAUNFELS PUBLIC SCHOOLS:
A NEW SCHOOL BUILDING FOR THE CHILDREN, 1913.

Introduction and Early School History.

The decision by the Board of Trustees of the New Braunfels Public
Schools to build a new school building in 1913 on lots 215 and 2161 was
the result of the rapidly expanding population of the City. The growth
of student population became a problem for the schools in the mid-1890s
and by 1900 an addition to the old New Braunfels Academy building (the
first school to be located on the site) was comp]eted.2 [See Appendix I
ownership progression of lots 215 and 216.] That building had origin-
ally housed the Comal County, District 1 school and then the New Braun-
fels Academy. It had been built in 1856 to comply with the Public School
Law of 1854, although a building had been planned earlier.

Provisions of the 1854 law encouraged construction since the law
required that for a county to receive state apportionment assistance,
they must meet certain prescribed requirements: The county must be divided
into districts and a permanent schoolhouse established within a district
for that district to receive state funds for its childrens' education.3
Hardly had New Braunfels (District 1 of Comal County) completed its school
in 1856 when the state passed a second school Taw. The 1856 law deleted
the system of dividing counties into districts causing a question of

ownership of the new schoo]house.4

New Braunfels response to its di-
lemma was to petition the Legislature to create an incorporated school

1



v

| Se—

_ B B OB =

e R, e B I —

2

which would be partially funded by local taxes.5 When the State Legis-
lature passed the bill, it was signed into law, and residents 1iving
within the corporate limits of New Braunfels accepted it; the New Braunfels
Academy became one of the first locally tax-supported schools in the
state. A1l property belonging to the First School District of Comal County
was subsequently given (by vote of the school patrons of District 1) to
the New Braunfels Academy. The Academy, as well as the Comal Union School
(incorporated in 1852 by the State Legislature) served most of the "white"
population in the corporate 1imits of New Braunfels.6 The Saints Peter
and Paul Catholic School also was an established private school for the
local Catholic children in the City.7

When an even more comprehensive state school law was passed in
1871, the right of the New Braunfels Academy to receive state funds was
called into question, but the Academy continued to function until 1878
when its Charter expired.8 In 1879, as the Academy's Charter was expiring,
the Board of Trustees petitioned the Legislature to renew its Charter.
While the House and Senate passed the bill, Governor Oran N. Roberts
vetoed it. He believed the bill to be unconstitutionaL9 With this
action, the New Braunfels Public Schools, District 1 of Comal County be-
came a reality although the Board Minutes continued to be written as
"The New Braunfels Academy" until 1884 and correspondence records the
10

name as late as the late 1880s.

The New Braunfels Public School: District 1, Comal County.

Throughout the Academy period and into the 1880s, there continued
to be a paternalistic attitude toward the schools by the City of New Braun-
fels. It was not unexpected as the City had an active roll in establishing

the first permanent school building in the municipal period of the schools.
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(the building that became the New Braunfels Academy) and the Mayor con-
tinued to hold an ex-officio seat on the Board of Trustees of the Academy.
Many times the City gave funds to sustain the schools. In a similar pater-
nalistic attitude, in 1884, the City purchased property for the use of
the schools; lots 213 and 214, across Mill Street from the former Academy

bu1'1d1‘ng.11

In 1900 the New Braunfels Public Schools, Board of Trustees
decided to build a ". . .school room. . .approximately 25 feet x 60 feet,
on the vacant lot [across the street]."12 Despite the new structure,
space continued to be a problem throughout the early 1900s. The Board
discussed expanding the existing classrooms and even thought of adding

a second story to the former Academy bui]ding,13

although there had been
three major changes to the building. As early as 1908 the Board of Trustees
agreed to visit all of the buildings in the City to decide “. . .if [they
would] repair the old ones or build a new [school].14

At this time the School Board supervised four buildings in the
City: the former New Braunfels Academy Building, the 1900 [high school]
Building, the School for Black children, and the Comal Town Schoo].15
This school came under the jurisdiction of the Board of Trustees in 1903
when that part of District Two of Comal County was consolidated with Dis-
One (city schoo]s.)16 Eventually, the old Comal Town School was leased
from the former patrons to be used for the Mexican-American children of
the community. In April 1911 a new school and teacherage was completed
for the Mexican-American children.l’

The 1913 Public School Building: The High School.

By January of 1913, the School Board had decided to move forward
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and at a special called meeting decided ". . .to build a new/schoolhouse.
." and also to form an independent school district which would be

separate from the city.18 In June C.V. Seutter anf:iiifzﬁgzz>ﬂ’5an An-

tonio were engaged as architects for a $500 fee.19 ‘636;1 Board also

agreed to contact the M K and T (Missouri Kansas and Texas) Railroad Com-

pany about purchasing the property at the rear of lots 215 and 216. The

decision was also made to build on the site of the old New Braunfels Acad-

emy bui]ding.zo
The Board had to accomplish the second goal first; to become an

independent school district so it could issue bonds and be able to build

the school. The First School District of Comal County became the New

Braunfels Independent School District on 1 April 1913. It new seal was

designed with a five point star and the words, "New Braunfels Independent

School Districty21 The first goal, to build a new school, was next on

the agenda. They were allowed a maximum indebtedness of $44,000. When

the contractor, Adolph F. Moeller returned the lowest bid for $44,873,

the Board had to remove some of the fancier features, but the final outcome

was established: there would be a new school in New Braunfels. They

hoped to have it finished in six months, but it took eleven months to

con struct.22 [See Appendix IV for a photograph of the completed building.]
One of the most unusual decisions made by the Board was to build

only 8 feet behind the old Academy bui]ding.23 That decision must have

caused the teachers some problems because in October the School Board

had to admonish the children about playing ". . .in the. . .back," where

the new school was being bui]t.24

Throughout late 1913 and early 1914,
decisions were needed by the School Board of Trustees regarding extras:

lead pipes, cesspools, desks, auditorium seats, a clock system, ladies
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cloak room lavatories, and the type of paint to use. The additional
costs soared to $5,500. The Ladies Civic Improvement Club gave the school
a ". . .$400 Tuec vacuum cleaning system," the newest and best avaﬂable.25
A final decision involved selecting a purchaser for the old New
Braun fels Academy building so the property could be cleared and also
to provide a pleasant view of the new school. The deadline for the removal

4,86

was set for 20 August 191 just in time for the community open house

to be held on 22 August. [See Appendix II and III for views of the Academy
as it appeared in 1913 and a section that is still in use in New Braunfels.]
On that day the doors of the school were thrown open for the public viewing.
The community expressed complete satisfaction. One of the local papers
described the school in glowing terms:

. .the neatness of the worksmanship in all its details

the practical and scientific arrangement of everything into

all its minutest details by far surpassed the expectation

of the visitors.

People, capable of judging, remarked that the Tighting,

sanitary arrangement, ventilation, and the effect of the

colors in the hallg auditorium, recitation rooms and the

basement were tasteful and as nearly ideal as possible.

The sanitary drinking fountains distributed in the halls

and basement, the vacuum cleaning system, doing away with

dust and brooms, the electric clock system, the emergency

locks on all doors leading out of the building, . . .in

case of fire, earthquake or any other out-of-the ordinary

disturbance, the doors are thrown open by pressure against

them, are among the main features that make tE7 building

one of the most modern in the State of Texas.

The dedication was an even more celebrative affair. There were
the usual dignitaries: architect, president and members of the school
Board of Trustees, important local people; also, representatives of
"the state uniVersity," the State Superintendent of Public Instruction

and the Secretary of State (of Texas). The Oelkers Band, the school
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children and the Gesangverein Echo helped to provide an evening of joy

and celebration that permitted the community to express pride in their
accomph‘shment.28 [See Appendix V]

The most obvious expression of the appreciation came in the form
of a resolution from the patrons of the New Braunfels Independent School
District. It stated in part:

. . .that we owe much to our present Board of Trustees for

the painstaking and conscientious services which they rendered

for us in connection with the erection of our new school build-

ing; [and], Therefore. . .by a rising vote [we] extend our
thanks to the Board of Trustees [: Fritz Druebert, President,

William Tays, @.F. Oheim, A.Eg Coers, C.V. Windwehen, Joseph

Faust, and Louis H. Scholl.]

After the grand dedication ceremony and the communities' expression of
thanks, all other action by the Board of Trustees must have been anti-
climactic.

The schol functioned as an all-level school from 1914 until 1925
when growth again caused major changes: two new elementary schools were
comp]eted30 and at the same time, a domestic science cottage was built
across the street from the 1913 school. It would serve the seventh through
eleventh grade students who would then be attending the New Braunfels
High School, (the 1913 school).31 Other changes would also follow. 1In
1951 the new Guenther Street High School was completed and for the first
time the 1913,school was called the 01d New Braunfels High School. The
school now accommodated the seventh, eighth, and nineth grades, and was
then Tisted as the New Braunfels Junior High Schoo].32 The school continued
to serve the School District in that capacity until 1964 when another
new high school building was constructed. For the first time in fifty
years, the school was not used as an active educational facility in

New Braunfels.33
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The 01d High School After 1964.

The school did not remain empty for long however; in July of 1965
space was leased to the United States Army for storage and a possible

34
fall-out shelter. Just prior to that time, the School Board of Trustees

made the facility available to the newly organized Community Action Center

of Comal County. The offer was accepted and the offices of the Center
officially opened in the building on 17 January 1966.35 During the years
that Community Action Center, later called the Community Council, offices
were in the school, one program, geared to children was in operation.
It was a program for pre-school children. A playground was installed
along with miniature furniture and kitchen faci]ities.36 The Community
Council moved from the building in the summer of 1984.37
Another program was added in September 1966. The School Board

of Trustees voted to remodel ". . .the building at 430 West Mill Street

. .to accommodate an Adult Vocational Nursing Program. The program
started in January 1967 and is still held in the building.38 On at least
one occasion a patron suggested that the 1913 school building should be

39

sold and a ". . .new construction fund. . ." be started. Instead, the

Board decided to remodel a part of the structure and increase the useful -
ness of it. The remodeled basement became the quarters for the Vocational
Education for the Handicapped [VEH] program which was a functioning organ-
jzation of the school by the fall of 1977. The program has expanded

40

since that time and still exists in the building.

The 01d New Braunfels High School: A Landmark.

Although the glorious days of the school, as described by the

New Braunfels Herald in 1914, have not existed for sometime, the building

[N

]

has continued to be a landmark in the community. Not only do the graduates
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of the old school think of it with respect (there were 37 graduation classes

from 1915 to 1951), their children, grandchildren, and even great-grandchildren

of the graduates of the early classes think of it as a very special place

in New Braunfels. Until recent years, the Childrens' Masquerade Parade,

a local childrens' celebration which is held annually the first Saturday

in May, used the grounds around the school as a starting place. When

the community has its Fair Parade in September, the Junior High and High
School Bands meet on its grounds. Most New Braunfels children know where

it is and have special memories of some event that was held there or started
from that point of reference.

The special attachment of the community for the school became
apparent in 1984 when a proposal was made to the New Braunfels Independent
School District, Board of Trustees that they consider remodeling the 01d
High School for needed new administrative offices for the school district.41
The Board found the idea appealing, however it was faced with a dilemma:
there were sufficient funds available from a recent bond election to build
a new and adequate building for the administrative offices, but only enough
to remodel the inside of the 1913 school. The Board decided to give the
community an opportunity to choose which they would Tike to do. If the
community could raise $60,000 to restore the outside of the structure,
the Board would restore it; if not, the Board would have to build a new
building across the street, possibly using the front of the 01d High School
for parking space. In either case, the district would have a beautiful
new office facility which would be large enough to meet the needs of a
growing district.42 [See Appendix VI for views of the building as it exists

today, before restoration, and Appendix VII for a "time Line" of school

occupants, 1914 to date.]
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A committee to restore the "Education Center" was appointed; a
campaign developed which included publicity that informed, excited and
drew a few nostalgic tears.43[See Appendix VIII for materials and publicity]
After one month, the campaign to save the "01d New Braunfels High School"
ended. The community had raised more than $80,000 to save their school.
The New Braunfels Education Center will become a reality in the Spring
or Summer of 1985. The old and majestic New Braunfels Public School
building that served all grade levels in the District will again serve

all of the children of the District as a core of education in New Braunfels.

44
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Date:
1914-1925

1925-1951

1951-(May) 1964

1964-1965
(July) 1965-?

(Jan) 1966-1984
(Jan.)1967-date
D)

1977-date

APPENDIX VII.
Time-Line for Use of the 1913 School.

A11 level school for New Braunfels Independent
School District.

High School Building, including 7th through 11th
(later 12th) grades.

Junior High School Building for 7th through 9th
grades.

A11 classes moved out of the building.

U.S. Army leased part of building for storage and
a fall-out shelter.

Community Action Council (later Community Council
of South Central Texas) Administrative Offices.

Licensed Vocational Nursing Program in part of
building.

Vocational Education for the Handicapped Program
in basement.

26
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APPENDIX VIII.

Materials Use in the Campaign to Save the 01d New Braunfels High School
Building, November-December 1985.
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For those who came to learn and for those who came to teach, this graphic commemorates a
nostalgic interlude in their lives and a noteworthy milestone in the life of New Braunfels.
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FOOTNOTES.

1New Braunfels Public Schools, District 1, Minutes of the Board
of Trustees, V. 3, (22, 27 Janaury 1913): 68, 69. Hereinafter cited as
New Braunfels Public Schools, District One, Minutes.

ZIbid., Minutes, V. 2 (21 May, 22 July 1895; 24 August 1896; 5 July
1900): 32, 36, 47, 77. For ownership succession of Tots 215 and 216, see

Appendix I.

3Texas, Laws of the State of Texas, "An Act to Establish a System
of Schools, 31 January 1854."

4Ibid., "An Act Providing for the Support of Schools, 29 August

1856."

SIbid., "An Act to Incorporate the New Braunfels Academy, 5 February
1858."

GIbid., "An Act to Incorporate the Comal Union School, 13 February
1852."

7The school was established in 1849. See Monica Fuhrmann and others,
History of Sts. Peter and Paul Church and Parish, 1844-1974, (New Braunfels:
Modern Printing Co., n.d.), n.p.

8Texas, Laws of the State of Texas, "An Act to Organize and Maintain
a System of public free schools in the State of Texas, 24 April 1871." Amend-
ed, 29 November 1871.

9"The Story of the New Braunfels Schools," Neu-Braunfelser Jahrbuch,
1943, (New -Braunfels, Texas: Neu-Braunfelser Zeitung pub. Co., 1943): 53,
56. The story includes a letter from State Senator F.C. Weinert, Seguin,
Texas to Adolph Seidemann, New Braunfels, Texas, 8 April 1914, The Senator
jncluded papers of the Senate action in passing the New Braunfels Academy
incorporation act and information regarding its "rough going" in passage
by the Texas Senate and Texas House of Representatives in 1879; also, the
veto by Gov. Oran Roberts. Translation by E.C. Mornhinweg, 1985.

10New Braunfels Public Schools, District 1, Minutes, V. 2, (29 April
1884): 15.

10
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11Coma1 County Deed Records, V. "R," (23 March 1887): 356-57; New
Braunfels Public Schools, V. 2, (10 October 1888): 10; New Braunfels,
Texas, Minutes of the City Board of Aldermen, V. 8, (1 December 1883; 7
January 1884): 106-07, 109, 111-12. Hereinafter cited as New Braunfels
City Board, Minutes.

12New Braunfels Public Schools, District One, Minutes, V. 2, (22
May, 8 June 1900): 73, 74.

13Ibid., V. 2, (7 May 1907, 4 June 1907): 194, 195. The cost esti-
mate for the addition was $8,000.

14Ibid., V. 2, (7 July 1909): 28. They were developing a plan much
1ike a modern-day "Master Plan."

15Ib1'd., V. 2, (2 July 1884; 19 June 1902; 5 June, 5 August 1904):
18, 139, 152.

1611:d., v. 2, (18 June 1901, 13 May, 9 September 1902; 5, 21 May,
2 June 1903): 86-87, 107, 116-17.

17Ibid., V. 3, (7 July 1908; 1 June 1909; 7 June 1910; 4 April 1911):
5-6, 17, 33, 44,

181pid., V. 4, (27 January 1913): 22, 27.

19Shand must have had 1ittle to do with the development of a plan
for the school as his name does not appear after 6 May 1913. See New
Braunfels Public Schools, District 1, Minutes. V. 4, (6 May 1913): 81.

20EventuaHy the M. K. and T. Railroad land was leased to the schools.
See, New Braunfels Public Schools, District 1, V. 3, (22 May, 9 September
1913): 92, 110.

1 21New Braunfels Independent School District, Minutes of the Board

of Trustees, V. 4, (3 April 1913): 73, 80. Hereinafter cited as, N.B.I1.S.D.,
Minutes.

22Other contractors were: Henry Benoit, plumbing, heating and wiring;
Louis Henne Company, hardware. The facing of the school building is Gonzales
Brick. See, N.B.I.S.D., Minutes, V. 4, (19 September 1913; 3 February,
17 August 1914): 111-16, 123, 146.

23\ B.1.5.D., Minutes, V. 4, (29 September 1913): 116-17.
2h14id., V. 4, (7 October 1913): 228.

251bid., V. 4, (25 February, 3 March, 28 April, 29 May, 4 June
1914): 124, 126-27, 132, 135-36, 138.

26Ado1ph F. Moeller, the 1913 school contractor, purchased the old
Academy building for $200. See N.B.I.S.D., Minutes, V. 4, (29 May, 3, 10
July 1914): 135, 141-43. One section is sti1l in use at 127 Nacogdoches
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Street, New Braunfels, Texas. See Appendix II and III.

27"Citizens inspect the New School Building," New Braunfels [Texas]
Herald, 28 August 1914. Hereinafter cited as, New Braunfels Herald. For
an early photograph of the school, see Appendix IV.

28"Schoo1 to be Dedicated Next Saturday," New Braunfels Herald,
28 August 1913.

29\ B.1.S.D., Minutes, V. 4, (6 October 1914): 150.

30Car1 Schurz was built southwest and Mirabeau B. Lamar, northeast
of the Comal River. See N.B.I.S.D., Minutes, V. 7, (9 October 1925): 72.

31y.B.1.5.D., Minutes, V. 6, (23 March 1924): 54; V. 7, (24 April,
9 October 1925): 56, 72. The school system was expanded in compliance
with state law to include a 12 grade in the 1940s, according to remem-
brances of the author.

32w111iam Karnau, telephone interview, 16 August 1985. Karnau was
a teacher and later the principal of the New Braunfels Junior High School, a
position he still holds. The enrollment at the Junior High School was 359
and at the High School, 321. See N.B.I.S.D., Minutes, V. 19, (18 September
1951): 399. Hereinafter cited as Karnau, telephone interview.

33\ B.1.5.D., Minutes, V. 17, (10 March 1964): 17.

34Karnau, interview, 7 May 1985.

35\ B.1.5.D., Minutes, V. 17, (27 April 1965): 1137. See also,
"A Chronology of the Community Council of South Central Texas, Inc.,
25 September 1984," Compiled by John Flavin.

3@5ratia Mitchell, interview, 7 May 1985. Mitchell was director
of the Licensed Vocational Nursing Program, New Braunfels Independent
School District, and holding classes in the 01d New Braunfels High School
Building at the same time that the pre-school program was being conducted.
Hereinafter cited as, Mitchell, interview. Also, rememberances of the
author.

37Louis R. Ramirez, telephone interview, 10 May 1985. Ramirez
was the executive director of the Community Council of South Central Texas
which had its administrative offices in the 01d New Braunfels High School

Building at the time that the Council moved from the building.

38y.B.1.5.D., Minutes, V. 18, (23 September 1966): 1404. Also,
Mitchell, interview, 6 May 1985; and telephone interview, Lila Schoenfeld,
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7 June 1985. Schoenfeld was the first director of the Licensed Vocational
Nursing Program for the N.B.I.S.D.

394.8.1.5.D, Minutes, V. 28, (2 August 1977): 2401.

801144, V. 27 (31 May 1977): 2385; V. 28, (2, 26 August 1977):
2401, 2408.

411pid., V. 34, (16 October 1984): 1986.

42Char]es Bradberry, Superintendent of Schools, New Braunfels
Independent School District, Oral Report to Parent Advisory Committee,

20 November 1984. Hereinafter cited as Bradberry, N.B.I.S.D. Superin-
tendent. The author was in attendance at the meeting.

43\ B.1.5.D., Minutes, V. 34, (11 December 1984): 1998. See
Appendix VII for some of the campaign materials and the newspaper pub-
Ticity at the time of the campaign. Among the activities were: a brochure
giving details and plans for the school, visits to civic organizations,
newspaper publicity, a "progress thermometer" on the lawn of the school,
and a "Reflection" program aired on Radio Station KGNB. [Reflections
is an oral history project of the radio station and the Sophienburg Mem-
orial Association, Archives. Participants were former graduates of the
school: Lottie Miller, Class of 1922; Nolan Zipp, Class of 1934; and
carol (Bucky) Smith, Class of 1946.]

44Bradberry, N.B.1.S.D. Superintendent, Oral Report to the Steer-
ing Committee, 01d High School Restoration Project, 14 December 1984,
the day the campaign ended. See also, N.B.I.S.D., V. 35, (9, 23 April
1984): 3023, 3026. The author served as secretary of the Steering Com-
mittee and attended the meeting. Other members were: H,E. Knox, Chair-
man, Merritt Schumann, Janelle Berger, Elizabeth Norwood, Doyle Krueger,
Carroll Hoffmann, Jules Bohn, Dr. 0.A. Stratemann, Oliver Haas, Frances
Bridges,
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. Laws of the State of Texas. "An Act to Establish a System
of Schools, 31 January 1854."

. Laws of the State of Texas. "An Act Providing for the Sup-
port of Schools, 29 August 1856."

. Laws of the State of Texas. "An Act to Incorporate the New
Braunfels Academy, 5 February 1858."

Laws of the State of Texas. "An Act to Organize and Maintain
a system of public free schools in the State of Texas, 24 April
1871." Amended, 29 November 1871,

PRIMARY SOURCES--UNPUBLISHED MATERIALS

Comal County, Texas. Comal County Deed Records. 5 Volumes: "C," "D,"
IIE,II IIH’II and IlIll.

New Braunfels Academy. Minutes of the Meetings of the Board of Trustees,
1858-1882 [sic], Volume 1. Translated from German by Carl Clifton
Toliver, 1982. Edna Faust translation project of the University
of Texas, Austin, Texas. Project administered by Texas Commerce
Bank, New Braunfels, Texas.

New Braunfels Independent School District. Minutes of the Meetings of
the Board of Trustees. 11 Volumes: 4, 6, 7, 10, 17-19, 27, 28,
34, 35.

. Charles Bradberry, Superintendent of Schools. Oral Report
to Parent Advisory Committee, 20 November 1984.

Charles Bradberry, Superintendent of Schools. Oral Report
to Steering Commijttee, 01d High School Restoration Project,
14 December 1984.
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New Braunfels Public Schools, District One. Minuteg of the Meetings of

the Board of Trustees, 1892-1908, Volume 2. Translated from

the German by Carl Clifton Toliver, 1982. Edna Faust translation
project of the University of Texas, Austin, Texas. Project admin-
jstered by Texas Commerce Bank, New Braunfels, Texas.

NEWSPAPERS AND INTERVIEWS

New Braunfels [Texas] Herald. "Citizens Inspect the New School," and

"School to be dedicated Next Saturday," 28 August 1914.

Bradberry, Charles. New Braunfels, Texas. Telephone interview, 18 Aug-
ust 1985.

Karnau, William. New Braunfels, Texas. Telephone interview, 7 May,
16 August 1985.

Mitchell, Gratia. New Braunfels, Texas. Interview, 7 May 1985.
Ramirez, Louis R. Seguin, Texas. Telephone interview, 10 May 1985.

Schoenfeld, Lila. New Braunfels, Texas. Telephone interview, 7 June
1985.

SECONDARY SOURCES--PUBLISHED AND UNPUBLISHED

Neu-Braunfelser Jahrbuch, 1943. “Story of the New Braunfels Schools."
Includes a letter, State Senator F.C. Weinert, Seguin, Texas to
Adolph Seidemann, New Braunfels, Texas, 8 April 1914, New Braun-
fels, Texas: New Braunfels Zeitung Publishing Co., 19 July 1943.
Translation from German by E.C. Mornhinweg, 1985.

Flavin, John, Compiler. “Chronology of the Community Council of South
Central Texas, Inc., 21 September 1984." Compiled for open house,
Seguin, Texas, 1984.

Schmidt, Curt E. "A Short Sketch of the Early Schools in New Braunfels,"
n.d., (manuscript, typewritten)

*For ease in description, the volumes of the minutes of the New Braunfels
School system have been assigned numbers according to chronological order.
A complete list, including dates and assigned numbers follows.
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MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS OF THE NEW BRAUNFELS ACADEMY, NEW BRAUNFELS PUBLIC
SCHOOLS, DISTRICT ONE; and THE NEW BRAUNFELS INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT.
The 1ist includes the assigned volume numbers and the dates of the assigned
volumes to which the numbers have been assigned.
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Vol. 1: 3 March 1858 to February 1882.

Vol. 2: March 1883 to 8 March 1892

Vol. 3: 12 April 1892 to 3 March 1908

Vol. 4: 7 April 1908 to 1 December 1914
Vol. 5: &5 January 1915 to 25 October 1921
Vol. 6: 3 January 1922 to 21 June 1924

Vol. 7: 1 July 1924 to 29 August 1935

Vol. 8: 5 September 1935 to 19 March 1943
Vol. 9: April 1943 to December 1949

Vol. 10: 3 January 1950 to August 1956

Vol. 11: 10 September 1956 to 30 August 1957
Vol. 12: 10 September 1957 to 12 August 1958
Vol. 13: 9 September 1958 to 29 July 1959
Vol. 14: 20 August 1959 to 10 August 1960
Vol. 15: 7 September 1960 to 3 July 1961
Vol. 16: 11 July 1961 to 20 August 1962

Vol. 17: 11 September 1962 to 19 August 1965
Vol. 18: 1 September 1965 to 1 September 1967
Vol. 19: 12 September 1967 to May 1969

Vol. 20: June 1970 to May 1970

Vol. 21: June 1970 to December 1971

Vol. 22: January 1972 to February 1973

Vol. 23: 13 March 1973 to December 1973

Vol. 24: January 1974 to December 1974

Vol. 25: January 1975 to December 1975

Vol. 26: January 1976 to December 1976

Vol. 27: January 1977 to July 1977

Vol. 28: August 1977 to April 1978

Vol. 29: May 1978 to April 1979

Vol. 30: May 1979 to 4 August 1980

Vol. 31: 26 August 1980 to 25 August 1981
Vol. 32: 1 September 1981 to 24 August 1982
Vol. 33: 7 September 1982 to 22 August 1983
Vol. 34: 6 September 1983 to 5 March 1985
Vol. 35: 9 April 1985 to
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APPENDIX I.

Progression of Ownership, New Braunfels City Lots, no. 215 and no. 216:

Recorded 1in County Clerks Office, Comal County, Texas.

The German Immigration Company to M.A. Dooley, 10 April 1852. Recorded
Volume C, page 542. Lot 215 is part of a 5 acre tract; Lot 216 is
part of a 40 acre traci.

Dual ownership of Lots no. 215, no. 216.

Sheriff, Comal County, George Ullrich, to F;w; Grassmeyer, 2 February,
1853. Recorded Volumeé C, page 645.

Owhership in question: Lawsuit.

F.W. Grassmeyer v. M.A. Dooley, 2 February 1853. Recorded Volume C,

pp. 645, 46, 47. Ownership retained by Dooley. Possibly the legal
descriptions in the early records caused the discrepancy as the Grass-
meyer tract was over 1,000 acres.

A Second Dual Ownership of Lots no. 215, no. 216.

Sheriff Comal County, George Ullrich to Julius Eggeling. (Sale ordered
by District Court, Bexar County in favor of a mortgage held by M.d.
and J.B. Lee against C.F. King. The relationship of King to the pro-
perty is unclear.) Recorded, 3 July 1855, Volume D, p. 424.

The Lots are Separated.

Lot no. 215:

M.A. Dooley to School Trustees, Comal County. Public Schools, District 1,
3 August 1855. Recorded, Volume D, page 424, The lot is a gift to

the School District.* The deed stipulates that it must be used forever
for the school children of the District and that a schoolhouse must

be built within 8 months.
Lot no. 216:

M.A. Dooley to William Seekatz, F.P. Fein, and George Ullrich, 11 Aug-
ust 1855. Recorded, Volume D, page 427.

William Seekatz, F.P. Fein, and George Ullrich to School Trustees, Comal
County, District 1, 11 August 1855. Recorded Volume D, page 427. The

Tot is a gift to the School District. The deed stipulates that it must
be used forever for the school children of the District and that a school
must be built on lot mo. 215 within 8 months.

17
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18
Lots 215, 216: Rejoined and Dual Ownership Ends.

Julius Eggeling to School Trustees, Comal County, District 1, 15 November
1855. Recorded, Volume E, page 27. Eggeling is the Mayor of New Braun-
fels from 2 August 1852 to June 1856. Although the City was deeply in-
volved in the schools at this time, the lot was purchased by Eggeling

and given to the School District.*

School Trustees, Comal County, District 1 to New Braunfels Academy,
27 February 1858. Recorded, Volume E, p. 778. No further action is
noted in the deed records of the County Clerk, Comal County.

*The gifts of the property are always sealed with a $1.00 consideration.
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APPENDIX II.

The old New Braunfels Academy Building after a wing [far left and back
of photo] was added in 1900. This is a postcard reproduction, c. 1914
just prior to the building being moved from the site.

ERPER G 2 RN N,

e

Photo courtesy of the Sophienburg Memorial Association, ArchiVes, New
Braunfels, Texas.

19
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APPENDIX 1IV.

Photograph of the New Braunfels High School taken in c. 1933, Otto Seidel
photographer. (no changes had been made to the exterior after its con-
struction in 1913-1914.]

The historic photograph is part of the Sophienburg Memorial Association
Archives Collection and is reproduced courtesy of the Association.

Photograph copied courtesy of Eldon C. Ketler, New Braunfels, Texas.

[See page 22]
21
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APPENDIX V.

"SCHOOL TO BE DEDICATED NEXT SATURDAY, AUG[UST] 29, [1914]."+

New Braunfels' new school building will be dedicated next saturday,
August 29, the program being quite an elaborate one. The opening act pro-
per, will be the delivering of the key of the building by Architect C.V.
Seutter to F. Druebert, president of the school board, whereupon the latter
will make the address of welcome. Response by J.R. Fuchs. The following
will make short addresses on various subjects: Dr. Prokosch of the State
University; Prof. Bralley of the State University; State Superintendent
of Public Instruction Doughty; Secretary of State Weinert. Editor Oheim
of the Zeitung will give a short history of the public school in New Braun-
fels.

Besides the above there will [be] instrumental and vocal music.
Oelker's band has been engaged to play several pieces; the school children
and the Gesangverein Echo will each sing a song or two.

The exercises begin at eight o'clock, and everybody is expected
to come.

Public school opens on Tuesday, September 1. Children will be
enrolled and assigned seats on that day.

*New Braunfels, [Texas] Herald, 28 August 1914, p. 1.

23
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New Braunfels ISD Supersintendent Charles Bradberry holds
sk~ seroeve zaard plaque for restaratics ol the oid high
schoo! or. Mill Street Iris Schumann center. conducted
research on the old building and Ethiot Knox was chairman ot
the drive to raise money to restore the building's facade.
{Photo by Frances Bridges).

NBISD receives
‘historic’ award

By SARAH DUKE
Staff writer

In a city where the past is a vital
part of the present, the New
Braunted 180 haes Yeer commended
by the Pexas Historican Cotnussion
for its efforts to preserve and use the
city's oldest standing school building
at 430 W Mill St

The commission awarded the
school district with the John and
Jovee Karr Award for repairing and
refurbishing what is now NBISD's
Education Center. Built in 1913, the
school had fallen into disrepair after
the district stopped using it for
classes

tris Schumann, who dedicated
weeks of work to researching the
building's past. said it almost seem-
ed like the old school was looking for
just the right use The building was
the New Braunfels High $chool for
years until classes outgres the facili-
ty The middle school has been hous-
ed in the building as well as an
assortment of special classes. com-
munity organizations and various
odds and ends needing storage.

The award {rom the state historical
commisston is quite an honor. said
architect Steve Titlotson. who headed
the renovaiion project for the 28.000-
square-foot building

“1'm not surprised that it won an
aware | think the aspirations of our
client : NBISD were high enough.”
he sid. added that community sup-
port {or the project made the job
mer exciting and challenging

“{t ~ realls an honur +to win the
wward  Amlme you are pubhicatly
recognized Incomparison o other
wort ' think that = an honor and 1
think tpe award woes to a lot of peo-
Pivs T sant widag that the com-
munity and former students at the
old school are as much to credit for
the success of the project as the
school district or the architects are

Donations collected from alumni.
local residents and New Braunfels
school children f{unded the renova-
tion of the building’s {acade A school
bond 1ssue paid for the interior work.

Aot of people were personally in
volvee You have to consider that the
awar¢ goes to everyone involved,”
Tillot~on said “To have the com-

munity's interest and the client’s in-
terest is exciting.”

Schumann was a member of one of
the last classes to graduate from the
New Braunfels Hjgh Scbool while it
was housed in the 1918 Bullding.-She
remembers making an impassioned
plea to her classmates to have a
drawing of the bullding printed on the
class diploma. She said she felt
strongly about the building even
when she was a young student. "It
was a neat building,” she said

During her research of the building
and property. Schumann learmed
that the property at 430 W. Mill St. is
destined to serve the needs of educa-
tion. "It has remained as functioning
school property since about 1855."
she said. adding that the former
owners of the property included a
notation in the deed stating “"the pro-
perty must be held in perpetuity for
school purposes ™

The enormous building replaced
the New Braunfels Academy as the
city's only school in 1914. Schumann
cited newspaper accounts of the ear-
Iy 20th century dedication celebra-
tion. saving they reflected the com-
munity's enthusiasm for the new
school

You could just sense the pride the
people had in the building. It was just
the neatest thing In today’s society
where we take things in a rather non
chalant way. these things that you
read in the (1914 paper gives you a
sense that this was really a special
thing to them. " she said.

Now 1< fike it's all abloom and
ablaze agamn with 4 new begiomng.”’
Schumann sakd about the newest use
of the building

Tillotson said he tried to capture
some of the building's original
grandeur with the renovation pro
ject. While the outside was feft In its
original state, the building's interior
was modified to function as a modern
administration building

“There's a very clean philosophy
about the building. The exterior was
to appear as it did 50 years ago and 1t
appears very much as it did.”" the ar-
chitect said The public areas of the
building's nterior were restored to
their historic beauty. complete with
the high, pressed metal ceilings
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¢ one. stone. It w

practical .peasons .to back the

paising & the
idraislng affort 1o Festor
E\:cade of the old New Braunfels

. High School on
~support " the pro;ect on both

BN Braunfels ISD wants to :
L relrro‘;el the old school to house &
‘new administration office,’
‘hopes - to " ral
‘school district

the ‘facadeé. . .
i km two birds . with";
?projcct o ill' preserve the F s

i historic school, and 1t will give': )

NB!SD pro;ect
deserves suppert

2
5

\,-"
I[’

\ o
here are sentunental and

‘West Mill. We

unts, . i

se  $60,000 from -
patrons to rcstore ‘
It ‘realized,.,the *

and "y

. ad
';-{‘thefl"-"‘*d\l.s-.t-.‘:,i.(:t; t W.5,807 _
+ tpinistration sfacility. .1, badly
needs .

NBISD has the money for the

‘ rcmodcllng which was provided

inlast year's bond issuc election.
‘But it doesn't have money for the
facade, and has appcalcd to the
publlc for help.-

The facade is the scntxmcntal
paxt New Braunfels has onc of
the oldest public school systems °
-in Texas, and the old high school

is a big part of its history, M4ny .
local citizens - can - trace ' their .

educational roots - through 1ts
- halls. '
~ Built in 1913, it provxdes a link .
between the past and present, It

was replaced by New Braunfels
Middle School, which scrved as
the high school until the current
Aacility was built, g
“Remodecling  represents  the
practical * aspects. The
‘remodeled school should provide
4 Imore space for the dollar than a
new building would. We wouldn't
‘suggest remodeling it if it wasn't
sound, but it is. And it has space
to handle growth for'a long tunc
_tocome..
- As’a result, we support the
project. Remodeling will provide
-ample space at a reasonable cost

.was built when enrollment at the+y and will ensure the school’s
New Braunfels Academy;: the.. preservation, We urge NRISD
| town’s original school building,; patrons to contribute to the
grew too large. Eventually. it - project.
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